
 
 

Planning & Economic Development 
2 Civic Center Plaza  •  El Paso, Texas  79901  •  (915) 541-4670 

 
HISTORIC LANDMARK COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS – 2ND FLOOR 
FEBRUARY 28, 2011 

4:00 P.M. 
 
The El Paso Historic Landmark Commission held a public hearing  in the City Council Chambers, 2nd 
Floor, City Hall Building, February 28, 2011, 4:00 p.m. 
 
 
The following Commissioners answered roll call: 
 
Mr. Joe Riccillo, Chair 
Mr. Hugo Gardea, Vice‐Chair 
Ms. Stephanie Fernandez 
Mr. Joel Guzman 
Mr. Ricardo Gonzalez 
Mr. Randy Brock (4:06 p.m.)` 
Mr. Jim Booher 
 
 
The following City Staff were present: 
 
Ms. Cynthia Osborn, City Attorney’s Office, Assistant City Attorney 
Ms. Providencia Velazquez, Planning and Economic Development, Historic Preservation Officer 
Mr. Tony De La Cruz, Planning and Economic Development, Planner 
 
Chair Riccillo called the meeting to order at 4:02 p.m. 
 
I.  CALL TO THE PUBLIC – PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

None. 
 

CHANGES TO THE AGENDA 
 

None. 
 

MOTION: 
Motion made by Chair Riccillo,  seconded by Commissioner Guzman  and UNANIMOUSLY 
CARRIED TO APPROVE THE AGENDA AS IT STANDS. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Mayor 
John F. Cook 
 
 
 
City Council 
 
 
District 1 
Ann Morgan Lilly 
 
 
District 2 
Susannah M. Byrd 
 
 
District 3 
Emma Acosta 
 
 
District 4 
Carl L. Robinson 
 
 
District 5 
Rachel Quintana 
 
 
District 6 
Eddie Holguin Jr. 
 
 
District 7 
Steve Ortega 
 
District 8 
Beto O’Rourke 
 
 
City Manager 
Joyce A. Wilson 



 
 

Planning & Economic Development 
2 Civic Center Plaza  •  El Paso, Texas  79901  •  (915) 541-4670 

II.  REGULAR AGENDA – DISCUSSION AND ACTION 
 
Certificate of Appropriateness 

 
1. HPC11‐00017  Being a portion of Portland St. ROW  located within Block J, Alamo 

Subdivision  and  Block  38, Manhattan Heights, City  of  El  Paso,  El 
Paso County, Texas 

Location:  A vacated portion of Portland Avenue between Elm Street and Grant 
Avenue. 

Historic District:  Manhattan Heights 
Property Owner:  City of El Paso 
Representative:  City of El Paso 
Representative District:  #2 
Existing Zoning:  R‐3/H (Residential/Historic) 
Year Built:  N/A 
Historic Status:  N/A 
Request:  Enhancement of a vacated portion of Portland Avenue between Elm 

Street and Grant Avenue. 
Application Filed:  02/14/2011 
45 Day Expiration:  03/31/2011 

 
Ms. Velazquez  gave  a  PowerPoint  presentation  and  explained  the  applicant  is  requesting  a 
Certificate  of Appropriateness  for  the  enhancement  of  a vacant portion  of Portland Avenue 
between Elm Street and Grant Avenue. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION; 
• The Historic  Preservation Division  recommends APPROVAL  of  the  proposed  scope  of 

work based on the following recommendations: 
• The  site does not possess any historically  significant details  that will be damaged or 

destroyed by the proposed enhancements. 
 

The Magoffin Historic District Guidelines recommends the following: 
 

• Accent  property  with  exterior  lighting,  it  is  recommended  that  a  replica  of  a  late 
nineteenth or early twentieth century period style fixture be used. 

• When  landscaping  is planned,  it  should be designed  to complement  the  structure  (if 
existing) and the streetscape. 

• New infill construction should maintain and reinforce the existing pattern. 
 

The Secretary of Interior’s Standard for Rehabilitation recommends the following: 
 

• Designing new work which  is  compatible with  the historic  character of  the  site  and 
which preserves  the historic  relationship between  the buildings or buildings and  the 
landscape. 

• Removing non‐significant site features which detract from the historic character of the 
site. 



 
 

Planning & Economic Development 
2 Civic Center Plaza  •  El Paso, Texas  79901  •  (915) 541-4670 

Mr. De La Cruz explained the vacation occurred back in 2009.  The purpose of the vacation 
was due to Portland Avenue ending there.  It was under the direction of City Council that 
that  portion  be  vacated  for  vehicular  access.    The  property  is  currently  zoned  R‐3 
(Residential).    The  enhancements  are  being  paid  through  Representative  Byrd’s 
discretionary funds.  The two light posts were donated by Mr. Davenport; additionally, the 
light posts had to get retrofitted with reflectors so that they would meet the city’s Dark Sky 
ordinance.  The improvements came before the Board in 2008.  At that time, Mr. Davenport 
proposed a unisex bathroom, which Commissioners approved.  Mr. Davenport’s dream for 
the property was to create and renovate it to the old Texaco look.  Furthermore, he hoped 
students  from, at  that point, one of  the high schools, would use  this structure as a snow 
cone shop.  It was around that same timeframe that Representative Byrd agreed to improve 
that current portion of Portland Avenue. 

 
Commissioner Guzman noted, now that it’s going to be stamped concrete, and  asked Staff 
if the drain would go towards the public right‐of‐way. 

 
Ms. Velazquez responded it would drain towards the alley. 

 
Vice‐Chair Gardea noted the drawings were a little hard to read.  He commented on a new 
sidewalk  that’s  shown  towards  the west  side  of  that property  and wondered what  that 
structure was between the street and that new sidewalk. 

 
Mr.  Carlos  Adame,  Architectural  Intern,  Engineering  &  Construction  Management 
Department,  responded  that  the  structure  will  be  an  informational  kiosk,  for  posting 
Manhattan Heights Historic District events and other  information, which pedestrians will 
have access to. 

 
Commissioner Booher commented on  the condition Commissioners placed on  the unisex 
toilet. 

 
Mr. De La Cruz responded Commissioners approved the construction of a detached unisex 
bathroom  facility,  with  the  condition  that  the  detached  unisex  bathroom  facility 
construction materials are compatible with the existing building. 

 
Mr.  Adame  explained  he  had  not  brought  the  plans  with  him;  however,  the  roofing 
material for the kiosk would be metal.  He noted the benches would be colored Kelly Green 
to match the light posts. 

 
Ms. Velazquez passed out information regarding the proposed benches and color. 

 
Chair  Riccillo  commented  on  the  percentage  of  hardscape  vs.  vegetation  in  the 
Administrative  Review  Guidelines  and  asked  Staff  if  this  could  apply  to  the  vacated 
portion. 

 
Mr. De La Cruz  explained, per  the Administrative Review Guidelines,  50%  of  the  front 
yard shall not be impervious. 



 
 

Planning & Economic Development 
2 Civic Center Plaza  •  El Paso, Texas  79901  •  (915) 541-4670 

 
Commissioner Guzman noted  a  0’  side  setback  and wondered  if  construction would go 
right up to the sidewalk. 

 
Mr. Adame responded yes. 

 
Commissioner Guzman added the 50% landscape requirement would be difficult to meet. 

 
MEMBER OF THE PUBLIC 
Ms.  Julie  Rutledge,  Secretary,  Manhattan  Heights  Neighborhood  Association,  gave  an 
update  on  the  progress  of  the  project.    She  explained  the Neighborhood Association’s 
ideas/input/suggestions  were  not  included  in  the  design.    Additionally,  per  the 
Engineering Department timeline, the Engineering Department Staff was to have met with 
the Neighborhood Association  on  two  occasions;  those meetings  never  took place.    She 
stated  there  is  a  lack  of  communication  between  city  Staff  and  the  Neighborhood 
Association.    She  added we  never  got  to  see  the  colors  for  the  benches  and  stamped 
concrete, we had no idea what the final outcome of the project would be until today. 

 
Commissioner Guzman asked Staff what other cities were doing with stamped concrete. 

 
Ms. Velazquez explained. 

 
Chair Riccillo wondered if the colored concrete was integral and added it would be hard to 
change integral. 

 
Mr. Adame responded the concrete is a colored variety. 

 
Commissioner Gonzalez asked Staff if the stamped concrete had already been laid. 

 
Ms. Velazquez responded yes and clarified the Certificate of Appropriateness is before you 
today per Representative Byrd’s request. 

 
MEMBER OF THE PUBLIC 
Mr. Ray Rutledge, Manhattan Heights Neighborhood Association member, stated he was 
very frustrated and thanked Commissioners for asking a lot of questions.  He explained, at 
the  meeting  with  Engineering  Staff,  the  Neighborhood  Association  requested  a  brick 
pattern rather  than stamped concrete.   Furthermore,  this project was  to supposed  to be a 
pocket park.   He  commented  on  the  hardscape  requirement  and  how what  coordinates 
with the park design.  The work is 80% complete; trees and canopies – the overall design is 
laughable.  He stated this is not a design that had public input, new use/new construction, 
the city got away with this one. 

 
Chair Riccillo asked Mr. Rutledge what  the Neighborhood Association wanted based on 
what has already happened at this point. 



 
 

Planning & Economic Development 
2 Civic Center Plaza  •  El Paso, Texas  79901  •  (915) 541-4670 

 
Mr.  Rutledge  responded  concrete was  being  poured  this morning without  the Historic 
Landmark Commission hearing request first.  He would like to salvage as much of the park 
out of all  the  concrete  and  asked  if planters  could be used  to  soften  the hardscape.   He 
questioned the use of irrigation lines for vegetation.  Finally, he would like Commissioners 
issue a “Stop Work Order” and request a current status review. 

 
Mr. Adame explained the project is 75% complete and should be completed in three weeks. 

 
Ms. Osborn explained Historic Landmark Commissioners are not able to issue Stop Work 
Orders. 

 
Ms.  Velazquez  reiterated,  via  the  Administrative  Review  process,  Staff  approved  this 
project months ago. 

 
Chair  Riccillo  asked would  it  be  possible  for  the  remaining  concrete  to  be  curved  and 
removed to  install more trees.   He requested the concrete be rounded or that the edge be 
incorporated with the landscape. 

 
Mr. De La Cruz explained what can/cannot be approved administratively.   He noted that 
the  property  was  primarily  landscaping,  not  a  residential  lot.    He  considered  this  an 
improvement to the area and approved the request. 

 
Commissioner Guzman asked who would be maintaining the property. 

 
Mr. Adame responded the General Services Department under the direction of Stuart Ed. 

 
MEMBER OF THE PUBLIC 
Ms. Julie Rutledge explained she had reviewed all previous Administrative Review Status 
Reports and never saw this project on any of them. 

 
Mr. De La Cruz apologized and explained it was an oversight on his part. 

 
Chair Riccillo requested tapering off the existing concrete and suggested the City could get 
some kind of credit and use that credit to purchase more trees.  He asked if there were any 
existing utilities. 

 
Mr. Adame explained  there was a drainage sewer  line  that dictated  the placement of  the 
trees. 

 
Commissioner Guzman wondered if anyone knew how Representative Byrd felt about the 
project. 

 
Ms. Velazquez responded she had conversed with Representative Byrd via email and that 
Representative Byrd did not stipulate her feelings on the project. 



 
 

Planning & Economic Development 
2 Civic Center Plaza  •  El Paso, Texas  79901  •  (915) 541-4670 

 
Mr. De La Cruz suggested Commissioners postpone the item to allow Engineering Staff to 
consult with the Neighborhood Association. 
 
The Commissioners  agreed  to postpone  the  item  and  also  asked  for  an  elevation  of  the 
kiosk and a different type of bench. 

 
MOTION: 
Motion made  by Vice‐Chair Gardea,  seconded  by Chair  Riccillo  and UNANIMOUSLY 
CARRIED  TO  POSTPONE  THE  ITEM  PENDING  INPUT  REGARDING  THE 
CONCRETE, CANOPY STRUCTURE AND REQUESTED A DIFFERENT COLOR FOR 
THE BENCHES. 

 
Following  the vote, Commissioner Gonzalez commented on  including  the Neighborhood 
Association  suggestions  and  stated  the  city  should have waited, pending  coming  to  the 
Historic Landmark Commission. 

 
2. Addresses  of  property  HLC  Commissioners  have  requested  that  HLC  staff  review  or 

investigate and provide a  report  to  the HLC.    If no addresses are  submitted  in advance and 
listed under this agenda item, Commissioners may announce such addresses under this agenda 
item.    Discussion  on  property  announced  at  this meeting  will  take  place  during  the  next 
regularly  scheduled meeting.    February  28,  2011  deadline  for HLC members  to  request  for 
agenda  items  to be  scheduled  for  the March 14, 2011 meeting.   March 14, 2011 deadline  for 
HLC members to request for agenda items to be scheduled for the March 28, 2011 meeting. 

 
A. Magoffin Villas at 915, 917, 1001 Magoffin Avenue and 1000, 1008, 1010 Myrtle Avenue 

 
Ms.  Velazquez  gave  a  PowerPoint  presentation  showing  recent  photos  of  the  ongoing 
construction.  She noted that no requests for construction changes have been received and 
that the project is going according to plan. 

 
B. 1725 Arizona Avenue (Fall Mansion) 

 
Ms.  Velazquez  explained  bids  were  awarded  last  week.  Staff  would  provide 
Commissioners an update at the next HLC meeting. 

 
C. Old Labor Temple on Oregon (formerly known as the El Paso Times Building) 

 
Ms.  Velazquez  gave  a  PowerPoint  presentation  and  noted  the  property  has  been 
designated  with  an  H‐Overlay.    She  referred  to  the  six  page  historical  background 
information provided in the backup material. 

 
Commissioner Gonzalez commented on the building signs and screening and asked Staff if 
those were authorized. 

 
Ms. Velazquez responded the changes may have been grandfathered. 



 
 

Planning & Economic Development 
2 Civic Center Plaza  •  El Paso, Texas  79901  •  (915) 541-4670 

 
Mr. De La Cruz gave background  information regarding  the Downtown Historic District 
designation.  He stated that Dr. Ainsworth had been negotiating with the property owner 
for nomination to the National Register; however, perhaps due to the fenestration pattern 
being covered and extensive renovations to the building, the nomination request had been 
abandoned.   Finally, Mr. De La Cruz explained  that  in 1991 an  inventory and photos of 
downtown structures was started but never completed. 

 
At  the next HLC meeting,  Staff will  research  and present Commissioners with  as much 
updated information as possible. 

 
HLC Staff Report 
3. Update on Administrative Review Cases since last HLC meeting for the properties listed on the 

attachment posted with this agenda.  (See Attachment “A”) 
 

Commissioner  Guzman  asked  Staff  if  the  property  located  at  516  Corto  was  the  “Turtle 
House.” 

 
Mr. De La Cruz provided background information regarding the property and property owner. 

 
Planning & Economic Development Department Report  
4. Update regarding appeal of HPC11‐00002 

 
Ms. Velazquez explained City Council approved the appeal regarding Memorial Park Library; 
subsequently, the matter will be brought before Commissioners sometime in April.  The appeal 
was  brought  forward  by  the  Manhattan  Heights  Neighborhood  Association.    The 
Neighborhood Association was unaware of  the proposed addition/remodeling  to  the Library 
and  requested  they  be  included  in  any  future  construction/remodeling  in  the  Manhattan 
Heights  Historic  District.    Since  the  appeal,  Historic  Preservation  Staff  has  met  with  the 
Neighborhood Association. 

 
Commissioner Gonzalez said it is helpful to meet with and inform Neighborhood Associations, 
whether it is required or not. 

 
Ms.  Osborn  explained,  in  the  future,  city  Staff  will  send  out  notices  to  all Neighborhood 
Associations informing them regarding any and all proposed construction projects. 

 
5. Staff report regarding re‐zonings of designated buildings in other municipalities 

 
Ms. Velazquez explained Staff was unable to contact Historic Preservation Staff from the cities 
of Dallas, Ft. Worth and Austin; however, Staff was successful reaching Staff from San Antonio.  
She explained the San Antonio Historic Preservation Office is concerned with what happens to 
the exterior of buildings; what happens inside a building is not within their jurisdiction. 

 
Commissioner Guzman referred to the Secretary of Interior’s Standards for Rehabilitation and 
asked Staff about standards for zoning. 



 
 

Planning & Economic Development 
2 Civic Center Plaza  •  El Paso, Texas  79901  •  (915) 541-4670 

 
Ms. Velazquez responded that the Standards do not address zoning.  

 
Chair Riccillo asked about parking lots within the Secretary of Interior’s Standards. 

 
Ms. Velazquez responded parking lots are usually under landscaping. 

 
Chair  Riccillo  would  like  to  see  rezoning  requests  approved  prior  to  coming  before 
Commissioners. 

 
Commissioner Guzman disagreed. 

 
Vice‐Chair Gardea requested Staff place the item on the next HLC agenda. 

 
Visionaries in Preservation Report 
6. Discussion and action regarding VIP issues. 

 
Ms. Velazquez  explained  that a meeting with  the Sunset Heights Neighborhood Association 
was forthcoming. 

 
DOVER KOHL & ASSOCIATES MEETING 
The February 15, 2011 meeting with Dover Kohl & Associates, consultants  for  the City of El 
Paso,  to  discuss  the  role  of  historic  preservation  as  it  relates  to  the  re‐write  of  the  city’s 
comprehensive plan was very productive.   Over 20 people attended, a lot of good ideas were 
shared and noted. 

 
Other Business 
7. A.  Approval of Historic Landmark Commission Meeting Minutes. 

February 14, 2011 
 

Chair Riccillo asked if Commissioners had any changes/corrections/revisions.  There being 
none. 

 
MOTION: 
Motion made  by Vice‐Chair Gardea,  seconded  by Chair  Riccillo  and UNANIMOUSLY 
CARRIED TO APPROVE THE FEBRUARY 14, 2011 MINUTES. 

 
ABSTAIN: Commissioner Brock 

Commissioner Booher 



 
 

Planning & Economic Development 
2 Civic Center Plaza  •  El Paso, Texas  79901  •  (915) 541-4670 

 
B.  Discussion and action on zoning process regarding demolition changes. 

 
Ms. Velazquez explained the number of demolition permits last year was 107; of the 107, 75 
were  reviewable  meaning  Historic  Preservation  Staff  would  review  6  or  7  demolition 
permits a month, less than two per week.  Ms. Velazquez stated Staff wants to review every 
demolition  application  to weed  out  those  needing  further  investigation.    The  Building 
Permit  has  no  indication/reference  to  demolition  requests.    Regarding  the  Historic 
Preservation Demolition  application  there  is  no  indication/reference whether  or  not  the 
demolition is whole/partial. 

 
Commissioner  Gardea  wondered  if  there  is  any  abeyance  reference  in  the  demolition 
permit. 

 
Chair Riccillo  asked Staff  to draft  a  code  rewrite  to  add  a  90 or  60 day moratorium  for 
demolition permit requests. 

 
Ms. Velazquez requested Commissioners allow Staff  to prepare and review  the proposed 
changes with Department Heads. 

 
Chair Riccillo asked Staff to leave this item on future agendas and provide Commissioners 
an update regarding the status. 

 
C.  Discussion and action on the Historic Landmark Commission recommendation on zoning 

cases. 
 

Please see item 5 for discussion. 
 

D.  Discussion  and  action  regarding  proposed  state  budget  cuts  and  its  effect  on  the Texas 
Historical Commission programs. 

 
Ms. Velazquez  gave  a  PowerPoint  presentation  explaining  the  proposed  State  of  Texas 
Historical Commission budget cuts. (Copy of presentation on file.) 

 
Vice‐Chair Gardea suggested contacting Representative Dee Margo to voice any concerns 
you might have. 

 
FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS REQUESTED BY COMMISSIONERS: 
 
None. 
 
MOTION: 
Motion made by Chair Riccillo, seconded by Vice‐Chair Gardea and UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED TO 
ADJOURN THE MEETING AT 5:16 P.M. 


